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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited

(formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31
2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash
Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act") in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilties under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusicn thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial pesition, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so. Those board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repert to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 have been audited by the predecessor auditor
whose report dated May 03, 2024 had expressed an unmaodified opinion.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”- a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph 2(h)(vii) below on reporting
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act.

(e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

(i The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in
the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 2 (h)(vii) below on reporting
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Qur report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements.

{(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements
— Note 30 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.
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There was no amount which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries and

(c) Based on our audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under paragraph 2(h) (iv)(a) &(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. The Company has paid/Provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

vil. As stated in Note 34(b)(xiii) to the financial statements and based on our examination which included test
checks, except for instances mentioned below, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on
1 April 2024, has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software.

Further, other than the exceptions given below, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with where such feature was enabled. Furthermore, other
than the consequential impact of the exceptions given below, the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention where such feature was enabled.

a. The accounting software used for the period 1 April 2024 to 31 January 2025 for maintenance of
accounting records of the Company, audit trail was not enabled at the database level for accounting

software to log any direct data changes.

b. The accounting software used for maintenance of accounting records with effect from 1 February 2025
could not be tested at database level since report for the said period was not made available to us and
hence we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature of the said software at data base level was
enabled and operated throughout the period.

For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants /
Firm Registration Number: 302049

S — LA

(Giridhari Lal Choudhary)
Partner
Membership Number: 052112

UDIN: 25052112BMLZDQ4297

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 8, 2025
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the
Members of the Company of even date)

i.  Inthe respect of matters specified in clause (i) of paragraphs 3 the Order:

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme
designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and
Equipment has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have
been noticed on such verification.

c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or intangible
assets during the year ended March 31, 2025. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending
against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules
made thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately
disclosed the details in its financial statements does not arise.

il Inthe respect of matters specified in clause (ii) of paragraphs 3 the Order:

a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the
year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedures of such verification by Management is appropriate. The
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory.

b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us
in the normal course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company
with such banks are not in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company and the details are as follows:

Rs. In lakhs
Amount as per books of Amount as reported in the Amount of
Quarter ended | Name of the Bank Particulars i 4 :
account quarterly return/ statement difference*
. Trade Receivable 3,897.57 4,172.06 (274.49)
Working Capital -
Mar-25 e Trade Payable 776.17 799.58 (23.41)
endaers —
Inventories 6,430.76 6,415.98 14.78
Total 11,104.50 11,387.62 (283.12)
) i Trade Receivable 3,638.33 3,824.14 (185.82) |
Working Capital -
Dec-24 ek Trade Payable 5,604.82 3,723.55 1881.27
Bngers
Inventories 7496.49 7,496.46 0.03
Total | 16,739.64 15,044.16 1,695.48
_ Trade Receivable 366124 4,075.13 (413.89) '
Warking Capital
Sept-24 Vana Trade Payable 5,678.97 1,443.64 4,235.33
enaders : . Ny S, T
Inventories 7.226.86 6,793.55 433.31
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Rs. In lakhs
rter Amount as per books of A t orted in the Amount of
. Name of the Bank Particulars P ol ' o
ended account quarterly return/ statement difference*
Total 16,567.07 12,312.31 4,254.75
. Trade Receivable 5,014.17 [ 5,519.90 (505.73)
Working Capital  ——
June-24 - Trade Payable 7,703.57 880.96 6,822.61
| rs
Inventories 8,018.66 8,010.40 8.26
Total 20,736.40 14,411.26 6,325.13

*As stated in Note 34 to the Financial Statements, the Quarterly statements submitted to banks were prepared and filed
before the completion of all financial statement closure activities including accounting standard related adjustments /
reclassifications & regrouping as applicable, which led to these differences between the final books of accounts and the
quarterly statements submitted to banks based on provisional books of accounts.

Vi

wil.

The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b),(iii)(c),
(ii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)}(f) of the Qrder are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or security to the
parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent
applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost records
as specified under section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the same and are
of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. YWe have
not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

In the respect of matters specified in clause (vii) of paragraphs 3 the Order:

a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and
other statutory dues applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

As informed, the provisions of sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of excise and value added tax are currently not
applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
the particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2025 which have not been
deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount Year Forum where dispute is pending
(Rs. In Lakh)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 644,57 AY 2017-18 Income Tax Appellate Tribunal,
. 77561 AY 2018-19 Pune

viii. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in

the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 18961(43 of 1961) as income during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

In the respect of matters specified in clause (ix) of paragraphs 3 the Order:

a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon
to any lender.
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b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us by the management, term loans were
applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have,
prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company

e) The Company daes not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
Clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

f)  The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

X. In the respect of maiters specified in clause (x) of paragraphs 3 the Order:

a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/ fully or partially or
optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. In the respect of matters specified in clause (xi) of paragraphs 3 the Order:

a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by
cost auditor/secretarial auditor or by using Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

€) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the order is not applicable to the company.

Xii. The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xii)(a)(b)&(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. In our opinion and accoerding to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv. In the respect of matters specified in clause (xiv) of paragraphs 3 the Order:
a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under audit have
been considered by us.

XVv. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

xvi. In the respect of matters specified in clause (xvi) of paragraphs 3 the Order:
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XVii.

XViii.

Xix.

XX.

XX,

a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtained a
valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, the requirement to report an clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) As represented by the Management, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d)
of the Order is not applicable. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by
the management is accurate and complete.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report on
Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (also refer Note 33
to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nathing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. \We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements and accordingly requirement to report on
clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

T,

(Giridhari Lal Choudhary)
Partner
Membership Number: 052112

UDIN: 25052112BMLZDQ4297

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 8, 2025
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the
Members of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Jupiter Tatravagonka
Railwheel Factory Private Limited (formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited) (‘the Company”) as of
March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting ('the
Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. \We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting (the *Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with autharisations of management and directors of
the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were

operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

(Giridhari Lal Choudhary)
Partner
Membership Number: 052112

UDIN: 25052112BMLZDQ4297

Place: Kolkata
Date: May 8, 2025
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Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)

CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
Tl tofes March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
ASSETS
Mon-Current Assets
a. Property, Plant & Equipment 4 (a) 7.396.97 8,273.00
b. Right-of-use assets 4 (c) 373.87 281.00
c. Capital Work-in-Progress 4{b) 504.34 -
d. Intangible Assets 5 132.95 24.00
e. Financial Assets
(i) Other financial assets 9(d) 81.50 107.00
f. Income Tax Assets 10 114.05 45.00
g. Deferred Tax Assets (net) 6 703.34 -
h. Other Non Current Assets 7 31,335.03 95.00
Total Non Current Assets 40,642.05 8,825.00
Current assets
a. Inventories 8 6,430.76 7,675.00
b. Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 9(a) 3,897.57 6,218.00
(i) Cash & Cash Equivalents 9(b) 15,911.83 289.00
(iii) Bank balances other than {ii} above 9(c) 603.03 2,213.00
(iv) Other Financial Assets 9(d) 1,457.65 109.00
€. Other Current Assels 7 2,838.41 1,487.00
Tatal Current Assets 31,139.25 17,991.00
Total Assets 71,781.30 26,816.00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a. Equity Share Capital 11(a) 28,756.01 11,064.00
b. Other Equity 11(b) 32,437.17 {255.00}
Total Equity 61,193.18 10,809.00
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12(a) 515.91
Total Non Current Liabilities 515.91 -
Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12(a) 6,701.15 -
(li) Trade Payables 12(b)
a) Total Outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 5.99 86.00
b) Total Qutstanding dues other than Micro and Small Enterprises 766.18 15,229.00
(iii} Other Financial Liabilities 12(c) 93.79 71.00
b. Other Current Liabilities 14 2,485.55 617.00
c. Provisions 13 15.55 4.00
Total Current Liability 10,072.21 16,007.00
Total Equity and Liabilities 71,781.30 26,816.00

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date
For Singhi & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 302049E

G

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
lupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Fermerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)

Giridhari Lal Choudhary
Partner
Membership Number: 052112

Place : Kolkata
Date :08/05/2025

e
._.——T—___-'_-)
Vikash Lohia an Kumar Agarwal
Director Whole Time Director

Place: Chh. Sambhajinagar
Date: 08/05/2025

Place: Kolkata
Date: 08/05/2025

M /me(w@ -

Devdatta Vaidya Prithwish Chatterjee
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Chh. Sambhajinagar Place: Kolkata

Date: 08/05/2025 Date: 08/05/2025




Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)

CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Notes March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
Income
Revenue from Operations 15 33,312.19 16,378.00
Other Income 16 1,002.89 255.00
Total Income 34,315.08 16,633.00
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 17 24,815.53 15,849.00
Changes in Inventories of finished goods and Work-in-progress 18 349.21 (2,483.00)
Employee benefits expense 19 1,322.33 1,178.00
Finance costs 21 579.10 329.00
Depreciation and amortization expenses 20 942.09 1,050.00
Other expenses 22 2,568.46 1,765.00
Total Expenses 30,576.72 17,688.00
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 3,738.36 (1,055.00)
Tax expenses
(1) Current Tax - -
(2) Deferred Tax 23 (703.25) -
Total Tax Expenses (703.25) =
Profit /(Loss) for the year 4,441.61 (1,055.00)
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations- gain/(loss) 23 {0.32) 4.00
Income tax relating to above 23 0.09
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax) (0.23) 4.00
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 4,441.38 (1,051.00)
Earnings per equity share 31
Weighted-average number of equity shares (face value of INR 10 each) 21,09,74,318 11,06,37,108
Basic and diluted earnings per share (INR) 211 (0.95)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date
For Singhi & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 302049E

S +— oA

Giridhari Lal Choudhary

Partner

Membership Number: 052112

Place :
Date :

Kolkata
08/05/2025

N e

A

Vikash Lohia
Director

Place: Kolkata
Date: 08/05/2025

Devdatta Vaidya

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Chh. Sambhajinagar

Date: 08/05/2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)

Pawan Kumar Agarwal
Whole Time Director
Place: Chh. Sambhajinagar
Date: 08/05/2025

AT (1S -

Prithwish Chatterjee
Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata

Date: 08/05/2025




Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)

CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 3,738.36 (1,055.00)
Adjustment for :
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 942.09 1,050.00
Loss on discard of property, plant and equipment 4.08 (1.00)
Finance costs 579.10 329.00
Interest Income (983.55) (221.00)
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (16.54) 78.00
Net impairment losses on financial assets - 13.00
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in following assets and liabilities 4,263.54 193.00
Adjustment for :
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 1,244.24 (5,838.00)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables 2,320.61 (5,158.00)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (222.33) 61.00
Decrease in other assets (1,220.27) (380.00)
{Decrease)/Increase in trade payable (14,522.52) 9,795.00
(Decrease)/Increase in other financial liabilities (10.93) 4.00
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities 1,829.22 (107.00)
Increase in provisions 11.55 -
Cash (used in) /generated from Operating Activities (6,306.87) (1,430.00)
Incame Taxes paid (Net of refund received) (69.05) {9.00)
Net Cash (used in)/generated from Operating Activities (6,375.92) (1,439.00)
B Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress including Capital Advan (31,872.54) (284.00)
Purchases of Intangible Assets {117.20) (6.00)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 1.00
Maturity of Fixed Deposit ' 2,213.00 (532.00)
Investment in Fixed Deposit (1,667.11) 1,793.00
Interest Received 939.49 208.00
Net cash (used in)/generated from Investing Activities (30,504.36) 1,180.00
C Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from right issuance of equity shares (Net of Share issue expenses) 45,810.32 =
Proceeds from Long term Borrowings 553.48 -
Praceeds of Short term Borrowings (Net}) 6,675.08 -
Finance costs paid (539.77) {(10.00)
Net Cash (used in)/generated from Financing Activities 52,503.11 (10.00)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash or cash equivalents (A+B+C) 15,622.83 (269.00)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 289.00 558.00
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at March 31, 2025 15,911.83 289.00




Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents as above with cash and bank balances:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
Cash and Cash equivalents comprises of:
Balances with banks 14.29 62.00
Deposits with ariginal maturity of less than three months 15,897.54 227.00
Total 15,911.83 289.00

Note:

i) The above Cash Flows Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS 7) -
ii) The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

iii) Reconciliation for total Liability from Financing Activity

Cash Flow | Non Cash Changes Interest paid
Particulars st i ntsrest dnd March 31,2025
2024 Exchange
fluctuation
Long 'fe'rm Borrowing(Including current 553.48 ) 553.48
maturities)
Short Term Borrowings 6,679.08 524,27 (539.77) 6,663.58
Total Liability from Financing Activity - 7,232.56 524.27 (539.77) 7,217.06

In terms of our report of even date
For Singhi & Co
Firm Registration Number: 302049€

Giridhari Lal Choudhary
Partner
Membership Number: 052112

Place : Kolkata
Date : 08/05/2025

Vikash Lohia
Director

Place: Kolkata

Date: 08/05/2025

Devdatta Vaidya

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Chh. Sambhajinagar
Date: 08/05/2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
lupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)

Pawan Kumar;\garwal
Whole Time Director

Place: Chh, Sambhajinagar

Date: 08/05/2025

P (A

Prithwish Chatterjee
Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata

Date: 08/05/2025




Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)

CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

A. Equity share capital

Notes Amount
As at March 31, 2025 11(a) 28,756.01
Changes in equity share capital 17,652.01
As at March 31, 2024 11,064.00
Changes in equity share capital -
As at March 31, 2023 11,064.00
B. Other equity

Reserves and surplus
Notes — - - -
Securities Premium Retained earnings Total

Balance as at March 31, 2024 11(b) 12,835.00 (13,090.00) (255.00)
Add: On issue of shares 28,307.70 - 28,307.70
Less: Shares issue expense (56.91) (56.91)
Profit for the year - 4,441.61 4,441.61
Other comprehensive income for the year (net i (0.23) (0.23)
of tax)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 41,085.78 (8,648.62) 32,437.17

Notas = ; Reserves and surplus

Securities Premium Retained earnings Total

11{b})
Balance as at March 31, 2023 12,835.00 (12,039.00) 796.00
Lass for the year - (1,055.00) (1,055.00)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net ) 4.00 4.00
of tax)
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 12,835.00 (13,090.00) (255.00)

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report of even date
For Singhi & Co
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

S $—

Giridhari Lal Choudhary
Partner
Membership Number: 052112

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)

\ \‘\Y}\’

Place : Kolkata
Date :08/05/2025

Vikash Lohia
Director

Place: Kolkata
Date: 08/05/2025

Devdatta Vaidya

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Chh. Sambhajinagar
Date: 08/05/2025

—

Pawan Kumar Agarwal
Whole Time Director
Place: Chh. Sambhajinagar
Date: 08/05/2025

Prithwish Chatterjee
Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata
Date: 08/05/2025




Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private limited)

CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. General Information

Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited (“the Company”) is engaged in the business of
manufacturing railway wheels, axles and assembly of wheelsets. The Company has manufacturing plant
in Aurangabad, India and sells primarily in India.

2. Basis of preparation and summary of material and other accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material and other accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless

otherwise stated.
2.1 Basis of preparation
i. Compliance with Ind-AS

These financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to the year ended 31 March 2025 were prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2021 (as amended)
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

ii. Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for defined benefit
plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

iii  Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal

operating cycle and as per terms of agreements wherever applicable which is period of twelve
months. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and noncurrent

liabilities.
2.2. Summary of material accounting policies
a) Property, plant, and equipment

All items of property, plant, and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the costs of the assets, net
of their residual value over their estimated useful lives




Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private limited)

CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Assets Useful life as per |
Schedule Il
Plant and Machinery 15 Years
Furniture & Fixture 10 Years
Factory Building 30 Years
Tools 5 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Electrical Installations 10 Years
Server and Networks 6 Years
Computer and Peripherals 3 Years

The useful lives for these assets are in line with the useful lives indicated under Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013.

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

b) Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Computer
software are amortized on straight line basis over a period of five years.

¢) Revenue recognition
Revenue from Contracts with customers

e Sale of goods
The Company accounts for a contract with its customer when it has approval and commitment

from both parties, the rights of the parties are identified, payment terms are identified, the
contract has commercial substance and collectability of consideration is probable.

The supply of goods does not have the same pattern of transfer to the customer as it does not
meet the conditions of performance obligations satisfied over time. Hence, each product is a

distinct performance obligation.

The Company assesses for the timing of revenue recognition in case of each distinct
performance obligation. The Company first assesses whether the revenue can be recognized
over time as it performs if any of the following criteria is met:

(a) The customer simultaneously consumes the benefits as the Company performs, or

(b) The customer controls the work-in-progress, or
(c) The Company's performance does not create an asset with alternative use to the Company
and the Company has right to payment for performance completed till date.

If none of the criteria above are met, the Company recognizes revenue at a point-in- time.
The contracts entered by the Company for sale of goods generally have a single performance

FEL 2 obligation and are recognized at a point-in-time. The point-in-time is determined when the
, control of the goods is transferred which is generally determined based on when the significant




Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private limited)

CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

d)

e)

risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the customer. Apart from this, the Company
also considers its present right to payment, the legal title to the goods, the physical possession,
and the customer acceptance in determining the point in time when control has been transferred.

e Rendering of services
Revenue from sale of services is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

e Sale of scrap
Revenue from sale of scrap is accounted for as and when sold.

= Export incentives
Export incentives are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will

comply with the conditions and the incentive will be received.

= Financing component

The Company does not have any contracts where the period between transfer of promised
goods or services to the customer and the payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Company does not adjust any of transaction price for the time value of money.

Contract balances
The Policy for contract balances i.e., trade receivables

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business and reflects Company's unconditional right to consideration (that is,
payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade receivables are recognized initially at the
transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The Company holds
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at the amortized cost using the effective interest method, less loss
allowance.

Government grants

Government grants related to assets can be presented in the balance sheet as deduction of the
grant in calculating the carrying amount of the asset. The grant is recognized in profit or loss
over the life of a depreciable asset as a reduced depreciation expense.

See note (d) under 2.3 for remaining relevant accounting policies.

Inventories
Raw materials and stores, work-in-progress and finished goods
Materials and other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down below

cost if the finished goods in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above
cost. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average cost

basis.

See note (i) under 2.3 for remaining relevant accounting policies




Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private limited)

CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.3. Summary of other accounting policies

a) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, balances with banks, and other short-term deposits, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes

in value.
b) Property, plant, and equipment

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred.

Assets costing less than INR 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts.
These are included in profit or loss.

c) Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Computer
software are amortized on straight line basis over a period of five years.

An intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control)
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

d) Government grants

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and
presented within other income. Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.




Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private limited)

CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

e) Financial assets
i. Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

e Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
e Those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, as elected.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

ii. Recognition

Financial assets are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

iii. Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset (excluding trade receivables
which do not contain a significant financing components) at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at 'fair value through profit or loss' are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its
debt instruments as follows:

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and
presented in Other Income. Impairment losses are presented as a separate line item in the
statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows
' - represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI|. Movements in the




Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private limited)

CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit and loss.
When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in other gains/(losses).Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or
FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income.

iv. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note no. 26 details how the Company determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets only, the Company applies the simplified approach
required by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from the initial
recognition of the receivables.

v. Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognized only when:
® Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset.

e retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company
has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial
asset, the asset continues to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial
asset.

vi. Income recognition

Interest income from financial assets at amortized cost is calculated using the effective interest

method and is recognized in the profit or loss as part of Other Income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount

of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit impaired. For
~——credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of
Lk -__ft'he financial asset (after the deduction of the loss allowance).

i




Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private limited)

CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

f)

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

g) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency, or bankruptcy of the Company

or the counterparty.

h) Leases

As a lessee

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a
lease. The assessment is based on:

(1) whether the contract involves the use of a distinct identified asset,

(2) whether the Company obtains the right to substantially all the economic benefit from the use
of the asset throughout the period, and

(3) whether the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

« fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable
« variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date

» amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

= the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option, and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in
the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, lessee's incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions. The Company primarily uses
incremental borrowing rate, which is based on the information available at the lease
commencement date, in determining the present value of the lease payments.
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Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

)

Right-of-use assets represent the right to use an underlying asset during the reasonably certain
lease term, and lease liabilities represent obligation to make lease payments arising from the
lease. The lease terms include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably
certain that the Company will exercise that option.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured
by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance lease payments.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are generally
depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

A right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability are not recorded for leases with an initial
term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and
low value leases, the Company recognizes lease payments as operating expense as incurred
over the lease term.

Inventories
Raw materials and stores, work-in-progress and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower cost and
net realizable value. The cost of raw materials comprises the cost of purchases. The cost of
work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labor, and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. The cost of inventories also includes all other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Foreign currency transactions

(i)  Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial

statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

(i) Initial Recognition
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On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency
at the date of the transaction.

(iii) Subsequent Recognition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when
the values were determined.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting
period. With respect to long-term foreign currency monetary items, the Company has adopted
the following policy:

Foreign exchange difference on account of a depreciable asset, is adjusted in the cost of the
depreciable asset, which would be depreciated over the balance life of the asset.

k) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Company measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or
the expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of

the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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1) Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-Financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less the cost of disposal and value in

use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.

m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss

net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one are more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or is a present obligation that arises
from past event but is not recognized because either it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed and

not recognized.

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. Where the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract is
recognized and measured as a provision.

n) Employee benefits
(i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-

term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the

additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated

at the reporting date. The company recognizes the expected cost of short-term employee benefit
| -/ @s an expense, when an employee renders the related service.
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Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or enchased beyond 12
months from the end of the year are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to
the financial statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as
current liabilities in the financial statement of assets and liabilities if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

(iii) Post-employment obligations

The Company operates following post-employment schemes:
e defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
e defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death or termination of employment, of an amount
based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment.

The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

Provident fund

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expenses when they are incurred.

Earnings per share

i
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i. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
e dividing the profit or loss attributable to owners of the Company
e by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

ii. Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings
per share to take into account

e the after-tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3. Key Accounting Estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periads.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below:

3.1.1 Significant judgments when applying Ind AS 115

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for
those products or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the
consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, price concessions and incentives, if any, as
specified in the contract with the customer. The Company exercises judgment in determining
whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. The
Company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are
rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to
payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of
significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

3.1.2. Employee retirement plans

The Company provides defined benefit employee retirement plans. Measurement of obligations
under such plans require numerous assumptions and estimates that can have a significant impact
on the recognized costs and obligation, such as future salary level, discount rate, attrition rate
and mortality etc.

3.1.3. Income taxes

The Company calculates income tax expense based on reported income. Deferred income tax
/-, -expense is calculated based on the differences between the carrying value of assets and liabilities
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for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax basis that are considered temporary in
nature. Valuation of deferred tax assets is dependent on management’s assessment of future
recoverability of the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability may result from expected taxable
income in the future, planned transactions or planned tax optimizing measures. Economic
conditions may change and lead to a different conclusion regarding recoverability.

3.1.4. Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets (tangible and intangible)

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets at each
reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate
to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software, customer
relationships, IT equipment and other plant and equipment.

3.1.5. Recoverability of advances/ receivables

At each balance sheet date, based on discussions with the respective counter-parties and internal
assessment of their credit worthiness, the management assesses the recoverability of
outstanding receivables and advances. Such assessment requires significant management
judgement based on financial position of the counter-parties, market information and other
relevant factor.

3.1.6. Fair value measurements

The Company applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments
(where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with the market participants to price the instrument. The
Company's assumptions are based on observable data as far as possible, otherwise on the best
information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be
achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

3.1.7. Contingent assets and liabilities, uncertain assets and liabilities

Liabilities that are uncertain in timing or amount are recognized when a liability arises from a past
event and an outflow of cash or other resources is probable and can be reasonably estimated.
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations where a future event will determine whether
Company will be required to make a payment to settle the liability, or where the size of the
payment cannot be determined reliably. Material contingent liabilities are disclosed unless a future
payment is considered remote. Evaluation of uncertain liabilities and contingent liabilities and
assets requires judgment and assumptions regarding the probability of realization and the timing
and amount, or range of amounts, that may ultimately be incurred. Such estimates may vary from
the ultimate outcome as a result of differing interpretations of laws and facts.

3.1.8. Right-of-use assets and lease liability

Where the rate implicit in the lease is not readily available, an incremental borrowing rate is

applied. This incremental borrowing rate reflects the rate of interest that the lessee would have to

pay to borrow over a similar term, with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset

of a similar nature and value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
-, Determination of the incremental borrowing rate requires estimation.
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3.2 Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘“MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
For the year ended March 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the
existing standard applicable to the Company.
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Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)

CIN : U2B113MH2013FTC240285

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

(i)

The table below provides details of amount recognised in Statement of profit and loss :

Particulars

Depreciation on Right-of-Use assets

Rental Expenses (excluding taxes) recorded for
short term |eases

Total

For the period |  For the period
ended 31st ended 31st
March,2025 March,2024

3.45 3.00
3.45 3.00

4 (b) Capital work-in-progress
(i) Ageing of CWIP
i Amounts in capital work-in-progress for
sa
More than 3
March 31, 2025 Cs b 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
year years
(a) Projects in progress 504.34 - - 504.34
(b) Projects temporarily suspended "
Amounts in capital work-in-progress for
As at
han 1 More than 3
March 31, 2024 Lees i 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
year years
{a) Projects in progress 5 y -
(b) Projects temporarily suspended -
(i) There are no projects as on each reporting period where activity had been suspended.
(ili)  There were no projects which has exceeded their original plan cost on each reparting date.
4 (c) Right of Use Assets
This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee. The Company has acquired a land on a lease for 95|
years.
(i)  The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:
As at As at
March 31, 2025| March 31,2024
Right-of-use asset (Gross Block)
Opening Balance 316.00 316.00
Adjustment 0.44 -
Addition 95.88 -
Disposal - =
Closing Balance 412.31 316.00
(i) Amounts recognized in the statement of profit and loss:
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2029
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance 35.00 32.00
Charge for the year 3.45 3.00
Closing Balance 38.45 35.00
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

5

Intangible assets

As at March 31, 2025:

Computer
Software
I. Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 30.00
Adjustment 0.26
Additions 117.20
Closing gross carrying amount 147.46
1. Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 6.00
Charge for the year 8.50
Closing accumulated depreciation 14.50
Net carrying amount 132.95
As at March 31, 2024:
Computer
Software
|. Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 24.00
Additions 6.00
Closing gross carrying amount 30.00
II. Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 1.00
Charge for the year 5.00
Closing accumulated depreciation 6.00
Net carrying amount 24.00
Deferred tax assets (net)
The halances comprises temporary differences attributable to :
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax liabilities
-Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,059.94 1,041.00
-Right of use assets 108.87 73.00
Deferred tax asset
-Unabsorbed depreciation 1,864.71 1,114.00
- Other temporary difference 7.44
703.34

Deferred tax assets (net)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Movements in deferred tax assets

As at Deferred tax As at
March 31, 2024 expense March 31, 2025
Deferred tax liabilities
-Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,040.94 (19.00) 1,059.94
-Right of use Assets 73.06 (35.81) 108.87
Deferred tax Asset
-Unabsorbed depreciation 1,114.00 (750.71) 1,864.71
- Other temporary difference - (7.35) 2i35
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) - 703.25 703.25
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - 0.09 0.09
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) - 0.09 0.09
As at Deferred tax As at
March 31, 2023 expense March 31, 2024
Deferred tax liabilities
-Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,130.00 89.06 1,040.94
-Right of use Assets 74.00 0.94 73.06
Deferred tax Asset
-Unabsorbed depreciation 1,204.00 90.00 1,114.00
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) - - -
Other assets
As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Non-current
Net Defined Benefit Assets (Gratuity- refer note 24B) 6.57 10.00
Depaosits with customs authorities 27.19 27.00
Advances to Capital suppliers* 31,243.35 -
Other advances** 57.92 58.00
Total 31,335.03 95.00
Current
Advances to suppliers 1,450.27 138.00
Prepayments 221.15 42.00
Balance with government authorities 1,166.99 1,307.00
Total 2,838.41 1,487.00

* It includes advance paid to parties relating to new manufacturing plant to be set up in Odisha.

**0ther advances pertain to the subsistence allowance paid to erstwhile employees
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(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

8 Inventories

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw materials 3,165.31 4,030.00
Work-in-progress 2,660.17 2,749.00
Finished goods 479.62 740.00
Stores and spares 125.66 156.00
Total 6,430.76 7,675.00
The above inventories include goods-in-transit as follows:
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw materials 394.75 1,910.00
Finished goods 144.88 237.00
Total 539.63 2,147.00

Amount recagnised in profit or loss

Write-downs/(reversal) of provision taken for inventories to net realisable value amounted to Rs. (18.37) Lakhs (31 March
2024: 131 Lakhs). These were recognised as an (income)/expense during the respective year and included in 'changes in

inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods' in statement of profit and loss.

9(a) Trade receivables

As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Trade receivables from contracts with customers 629.06 2,245.00
Tradle receivables from contracts with customers- related 3387.33 4,092.00
parties (Refer note 29)

Less: Loss allowance (118.82) (119.00)
Total 3,897.57 6,218.00
Break-up of trade receivables

Trade receivables considered good — unsecured 3,897.57 6,218.00
Trade receivables - credit impaired # 118.82 119.00
Total 4,016.39 6,337.00
Less: Loss allowance against credit impaired (118.82) (119.00)
Total 3,897.57 6,218.00

#Trade Receivables - credit impaired comprises of parties where the Company has initiated legal proceedings for recovery

and provided for loss allowance.

b)  Expected credit loss allowances (including against Credit Impaired)

" As at 31st As at 31st March,
ARl March, 2025 2024
Opening Balance 115.00 106.00
Movement in Allowance for expected credit loss * (0.18) 13.00
Closing Balance 118.82 119.00

* Rounding off adjustment

S ¢}  Refer note no. 12(a) for information on trade receivables pledged as securities by the Company.

other person.

| d) 'Notrade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any
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Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited

(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)
CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

9(b)

9(c)

9(d)

10

Cash and cash equivalents

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Balances with banks

-in current accounts 14.29 62.00
Deposits with original maturity of less than three maonths 15,897.54 227.00
Total 15,911.83 289.00

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting

period and prior periods.

Bank balances other than (b) above

As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
i i igi i h | han 12
Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 603.03 428.00
months®
Deposits with bank maturiting within 12 months* 1,785.00
Total 603.03 2,213.00

*As at March 31, 2025 fixed deposit of Rs 223.25 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs 98 Lakhs) held as lien by bank

against bank guarantees.

Other financial assets

As at As at

March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Non-current
Security deposits 81.50 82.00
Deposits with bank with ariginal maturity more than 12 months* 25.00
Total non-current financial assets 81.50 107.00
Current
Deposits with bank maturiting within 12 months* 1,089.08 -
Earnest money deposits 248.83 26.00
Interest accrued 119.74 83.00
Total current financial assets 1,457.65 109.00

* As at March 31, 2025 fixed deposit of Rs 706.10 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs 25 Lakhs) held as lien by bank

against bank guarantees

Income Tax Assets

As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Withholding tax 114.05 45.00
Total 114.05 45.00




Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited

(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)
CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

11

11(a)

(i) Equity shares held by holding company or ultimate holding or its subsidiaries

Equity share capital and other equity
Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capital

Number of Equity
Amount
shares of Rs 10 each
As at March 31, 2023 11,50,00,000 11,500.00
Change during the year = =
As at March 31, 2024 11,50,00,000 11,500.00
Change during the year 58,50,00,000 58,500.00
As at March 31, 2025 70,00,00,000 70,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital
Number of Equity
Amount
shares of Rs 10 each un
As at March 31, 2023 11,06,37,108 11,064.00
Change during the year ¥ =
As at March 31, 2024 11,06,37,108 11,064.00
Change during the year 17,69,23,100 17,692.01
As at March 31, 2025 28,75,60,208 28,756.01

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has single class of equity shares having a par value of % 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the appraval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in propartion to their shareholding.

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Amount) (Amount)
28,12,02,656 shares (31 March,2024: 10,42,79,556) held by Jupiter Wagons
Limited (Holding Company w.e.f. 20 March 2024) 28,120.27 10,427.96
Total 28,120.27 10,427.96




Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited

(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)

CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

(i) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2025

Number of shares % of holding
Jupiter Wagons Limited 28,12,02,656 97.79%
Total 28,12,02,656 97.79%

As at March 31, 2024

Number of shares % of holding
Jupiter Wagons Limited (Holding Company w.e.f. 20 March 2024)
10,42,79,556 94.25%
Bonatrans Group A.S., subsidiary of ICK Group P.L.C. (Holding Campany up to 63,57,552 5.75%
19 March 2024)
Total 11,06,37,108 100.00%

(iv) Details of Promoters and Promoters Group shareholding in the company:

As at March 31, 2025
Number of | % of total no. of shares | % of change during the

shares year
Jupiter Wagons Limited 28,12,02,656 97.79% 3.54%
Total 28,12,02,656 97.79%

As at March 31, 2024
Number of | % of total no. of shares |% of change during the

shares year
Jupiter Wagons Limited 10,42,79,556 94.25% 100%
Total 10,42,79,556 94.25%

v) No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment
as at the Balance Sheet date.
vi) The Company has not bought back any shares and issued Bonus Shares during the period of five years preceding the date at which
the Balance Sheet is prepared
vii) No securities convertible into Equity/ Preference shares have been issued by the Company during the year.

viii) No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

11(b)

@i

(ii)

(iii)

Other Equity

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Retained earnings (8,648.62) (13,090.00)
Securities premium 41,085.79 12,835.00
Total 32,437.17 (255.00)

Securities premium

As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2025

Opening balance 12,835.00 12,835.00
Add: On issue of shares 28,307.70 -
Less: Shares issue expense (56.91) .
Closing balance 41,085.79 12,835.00
Retained earnings:

As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2025

Opening balance (13,090.00) (12,039.00)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 4,441.61 (1,055.00)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained
- Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations, net of tax (0.23) 4.00
Closing balance (8,648.62) (13,090.00)
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans

As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2025

Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add/(Less): Change during the year (Net of tax)
Add/(Less): Transferred to Retained Earnings
Balance as at the end of the year

(0.23)
0.23

4.00
(4.00)

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of

the Companies Act 2013.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents the accumulated profits / losses made by the Company over the years.

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) :

Other Comprehensive Income (OC!) represent the balance in equity for items to be accounted under OCl and comprises of the following:

i) Remeasurement of defined benefit plans: The actuarial gains and losses arising on defined benefit obligations have been

recognised in OC| and thereafter transferred to Retained Earnings.

g
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12(a)

b)

<

ii

i)

d)
i)

Borrowings
Non-current
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured :
Term Loan from Bank 554.52
Less: Current maturities shown under Current Borrowings {38.61) =
Total 515.91 -
Current
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured :
Cash Credit/Working Capital Demand Loan from Banks 5,123.17 -
Supplier Credit Financing from Bank 1,539.37 E
Current Maturity of Secured Long Term Borrowings 38.61 =
Total 6,701.15 -
Secured Term Loan from Banks

Term loan from Yes Bank Ltd of Rs.560.58 Lakh (Previous Year: Nil} is due for repayment from guarter ending 19-10-2025 to
July 2032 in 28 equal quarterly installments with floating interest rate of 3 Month T-Bill + 2.14% (i.e. Current Effective:
9.00% p.a.)

The above |oans are secured by first Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on Movable Fixed Assets acquired from the
proceeds of the Term Loan and second charge by way of hypothecation on current assets of the company on pari-passu

Cash Credit from Banks

HDFC Bank Ltd of Rs.2,417.18 Lakh (Previous Year: Nil). The cash credit is secured by first pari passu charge by way of]
hypothecation on entire current assets of the company (present and future), Stock and book debt of the company at Plot
No.A-119, Shendra MIDC Chhatrapati Sambhajinagar and second pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on movable
fixed Asset of the company at Plot No.A-119, Shendra MIDC Chhatrapati Sambhajinagar. Floating rate of interest 9% p.a
linked to 3 month T bill plus 200 bp.

ICICI Bank Ltd of Rs.1,600.93 Lakh (Previous Year: Nil). The cash credit (WCDL) is secured by first pari passu charge by way|
of hypothecation on raw material, 5IP, finish goods, store spare and other consumable including trade receivable and other
all other current asset of the Company both present and future, and second pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on
entire movable fixed Asset of the company. Floating rate of interest 9% I-MCLR-6M and spread 0.30% .

SBI Bank Ltd of Rs.1,105.06 Lakh (Previous Year: Nil). The cash credit is secured by first pari passu charge by way of
hypothecation on raw material, SIP, finish goods, store spare and other consumable including trade receivable, Advance to|
supplier of raw material and other all other current asset of the company both present and future located at factory|
premises Plot No.A-119, Shendra MIDC Chhatrapati, and second pari passu charge with other WC lender by way of]
martgage/hypothecation on fixed Asset including factory land (leasehold) and building, Plant and Machineries and other|
current asset of the company located at factory premises Plot No.A-119,Shendra MIDC Chhatrapati. Floating rate of interest
10% P.A (6 month MCLR 8.65% p.a).

Supplier Credit financing from Bank

SBI Bank Ltd of Rs.1,539.37 Lakh (17.99 Lakh USD) ( (Previous Year: Nil). The Letter of Credit is secured by first pari passu
charge by way of hypothecation on raw material, WIP,finish goods, store spare and other consumable including trade
receivable, Advance to supplier of raw material and other all other current asset of the Company both present and future
located at factory premises Plot No.A-119,Shendra MIDC Chhatrapati, and second pari passu charge with other WC lender
by way of mortgage/hypothecation on fixed Asset including factory land (leasehold) and building, Plant and Machineries|
and other current asset of the company located at factory premises Plot No.A-119,Shendra MIDC Chhatrapati.




Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited
(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

[12(b) Trade payables
As at As at
March 31, | March 31,
2025 2024
Trade payables-Micro and small enterprises 9.99 86.00
(refer note 32)
Trade payables-Others 766.18 | 15,229.00
Total 776.17 | 15,315.00
Trade payable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025
QOutstanding for following periods from
. o due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not Due e Than P 2‘{3 Niore than Total
1-2 years
Year years 3 years
Undisputed dues
(i) MSME - 9.12 0.87 - - - 9.99
(i) Others 299.18 392.68 55.94 2.03 1.67 8.56 760.06
Disputed dues
(i) MSME - - - - - - -
(ii) Others - - - - - 6.12 6.12
Total 299,18 401.80 56.81 2.03 1.67 14.68 776.17
Trade payable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024
Unbilled e Outstanding for following periods from Total
tarticlars due date of payment
Less Than 1 2-3 More than
1-2 years
Year years 3 years
Undisputed dues
(i) MSME - 80.00 6.00 - - - 86.00
(i) Others 109.00 8,583.00 | 6,341.00 3.00| 32.00 155.00 | 15,223.00
Disputed dues
(i) MSME = = = = = = -
(ii) Others - - - - - 6.00 6.00
Total 109.00 8,663.00 | 6,347.00 3.00 | 32.00 161.00 | 15,315.00
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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12(c)

13

14

Other financial liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Capital creditors 76.72 43.00
Payables to employees 7.07 18.00
Security deposit from customers 10.00 10.00
Total 93.79 71.00
Provisions
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 244) 15.55 4.00
Total 15.55 4.00
Other current liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory dues 63.18 38.00
Payable to Government authority including interest® 2,058.25 579.00
Advance from Customers 364.12 2
Total 2,485.55 617.00

*During the financial year ended March 31, 2015, the Company imported assets amounting to INR 3,850
Lakhs under Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme without paying any import duty amounting to INR
1,347 Lakhs due to which the Company has the export obligation of INR 8,175 (Lakhs) which is required
to be fulfilled within & years (i.e between July 2021-September 2021) of the date of export or extended
time as granted by the authorities.

The remaining fulfilment against 3 licenses for which the Company had obtained extension till March
2025.The Company is in a process of obtaining further extention. On the basis of the management's
assessment of the Company's ability to fullfil its export obligation untill the revised timeline, the
Company expects a shortfall in meeting those obligations and accordingly may be required to pay the
customs duty benefit availed at the time of imports and thus Company has provided for such expected
shortfall of custom duty of Rs. 245.27 lakhs and interest of Rs. 307 lakhs thereon, during the financial
year 2023-24.

Summary of liability recognised against the 3 unfulfilled licenses

Custom Duty

Eitioit Oblisstian saved on ISt o DRy Total Liability
Export Obligation to p g B Balance obligation unfulfilled & recognized on the
fulfilled till March saved till March 31,
be fulfilled to be fulfilled recognised as unfulfilled
31, 2025 2025 s
addition to plant obligation
and machinery
3,338.66 1,867.07 1,471.59 24527 344.27 589.54
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(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

15 Revenue from operations

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Sale of products 32,800.27 15,950.00
Sale of services - 12.00
Other operating revenue

- Scrap sales 511.92 408.00
- Export incentives - 8.00
Total 33,312.19 16,378.00

(a) Timing of revenue recognition
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

At a point in time 32,800.27 15,950.00
Over time 12.00
Total 32,800.27 15,962.00

(b) Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

There is no significant variation between revenue recognised in Statement of profit and loss and contract
price except price variation claims, which are considered to be part of contract price.

(c) Disaggregation of revenue

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Geographical Region

India 32,800.27 15,712.00
Overseas E 250.00
Total 32,800.27 15,962.00

(d) Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from
contracts with customers Receivables, which are included in ‘Trade receivables’

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Receivable 3,897.57 6,218.00
364.12 =

Contract Liabilities-Advance from customer

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the
contract liability balance at the beginning of the period

Revenue recognised in the reporting period from performance
obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous periods
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16

17

18

Other income

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:

- Deposits with banks 976.23 218.00
- Deposits with others 732 3.00
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and eguipment - 1.00
Miscellaneous Income 19.34 33.00
Total 1,002.89 255.00
Cost of materials consumed
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Raw materials at the beginning of the year 4,030.00 737.00
Add: Purchases 23,950.84 19,142.00
Less; Raw material at the end of the year 3,165.31 4,030.00
Cost of materials consumed 24,815.53 15,849.00
Changes in Inventories of finished goods and Work-in-progress
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Opening balance

Work in progress 2,745.00 733.00
Finished goods 740.00 273.00
Total opening balance 3,489.00 1,006.00
Closing balance

Work in progress 2,660.17 2,749.00
Finished goods 479.62 740.00
Total closing balance 3,139.79 3,489.00
Total Changes in Inventaries of finished goods and Work-in- 349.21 (2,483.00)

progress
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19

20

21

Employee benefits expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,173.88 1,050.00
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 24D) 47.06 38.00
Gratuity (refer note 24B) 12.95 11.00
Staff welfare expenses 88.44 79.00
Total 1,322.33 1,178.00
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment [refer note 4(a)] 930.14 1,042.00
Depreciation on right-of-use assets [refer note 4(c)(ii)] 345 3.00
Amortisation of intangible assets [refer note 5] 8.50 5.00
Total 942.09 1,050.00
Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on:
Interest on Borrowings 359.50 -
Interest to Others 39.69 329.00
Other Borrowing Cost 211.33 -
Less- Interest Capitalized (31.43) -
Total 579.10 329.00
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22

Other expenses

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

22(a)

Consumption of store and spare parts 343.24 387.00
Power, Fuel and Water 235.56 181.00
Repair and Maintenance
- Plant and Machinery 175.65 267.00
- Others 103.69 103.00
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 159.53 152.00
Legal and Professional Charges 83.49 97.00
Insurance 47.72 40.00
Payment to Auditors (refer note 22(a)) 12.15 32.00
Inspection Charges 23.92 27.00
Advertising and Sales Promotion 32.81 20.00
Security Expenses 64.00 66.00
Freight Outward 636.63 120.00
Net impairment loss on financial assets - 13.00
Bank Charges 19.20 42.00
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuations 238.58 116.00
Loss on fixed Asset discarded 4.08 -
Demurrage Charges 278.06 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 110.14 102.00
Total 2,568.46 1,765.00
Details of payments to auditors

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

As auditor:

Statutory Audit Fee (including limited reviews) 12.00 16.00
Out of pocket expenses 0.15 1.00
Tax audit fee s 1.00
In other capacities

Group reporting 7.00
Other - 7.00
Total 12.15 32.00
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23

Income tax expense

The components of income tax expense are:

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Income tax expense
Current income tax

Total current income tax

Deferred tax (703.25) -

Total deferred tax expense / (credit) (703.25) -

Total (703.25) -
Year ended Year ended

Other comprehensive income section

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year

{0.09)

Reconciliation of income tax expense at statutory income tax rate to income tax expense reported in

statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Baiticuiars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Profit/(Loss) before income tax expense 3,738.36 (1,055.00)

Applicable Tax Rate 29.12% 26%

Estimated Income tax expenses 1,088.61 (274.00)

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile income tax expense to

reported income tax expense:

Items on which deferred tax assets not recognised earlier

Unabsorbed depreciation (1,784.51) 182.00

Tax losses - 1.00

Other temporary differences (7.44) 91.00

Income tax expense/(credit) (703.34) -

During the year ended 31st March, 2025, the Company, based on profitability projections, has recognised
deferred tax asset (DTA) on unabsorbed depreciation relating to prior years not recognised in earlier
years,as stated above. The management believes that there is reasonable certainty that the Company will
be able to utilise unabsorbed depreciation against the future taxable profits of the Company based on

profitability projections.

Tax Losses Carried forward

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Expire - 5.00
Never Expire 6,403.54 10,534.00
Total 6,403.54 10,539.00

it
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24

Employee benefit obligations

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Leave obligations (Refer Note A) 15.55 4.00
Current 15,55 4.00
Gratuity (Refer Note B) (6.57) (10.00)
Non-current (6.57) (10.00)
Current - -
Leave obligations

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for earned leave.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market,

The entire amount of the provision of Rs. 15.55 Lakhs (March 2024: 4 Lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these ohligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does
not expect all employees to avail the full amount of accrued leave or require payment for such leave within the next 12 months.
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B Gratuity
The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service
for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn
basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is
a funded plan and the Company has funded the liability as on March 31, 2025.
The amounts recognised in balance sheet and movements in the net benefit obligation over the year are as
follows :
Present value of | Fair value of plan
Net amount
obligation assets
1 April 2024 38.08 (47.84) (9.76)
Current service cost 14.02 - 14.02
Interest expense/(income) 2.74 (3.81) (1.07)
Total amount recognised in Profit or Loss 16.76 (3.81) 12.95
Remeasurements
- [Galn?/loss from change in financial 163 0.05 G
assumptions
- Experience (gain)/loss on plan liabilities (1.22) (0.13) (1.36)
Total amoun.t recognised in Other 0.41 0.08) 0.32
Comprehensive Income
Employer contributions/premiums paid - (10.09) (10.09)
Benefit payments = - =
31-Mar-25 55.25 (61.82) (6.57)
Present value of | Fair value of plan Nk siatin
obligation assets
1 April 2023 31.00 (38.00) (7.00)
Current service cost 12.00 = 12.00
Interest expense/(income) 2.00 (3.00) (1.00)
Total amount recognised in Profit or Loss 14.00 (3.00) 11.00
Remeasurements
- (Gain)/loss from change in financial 3.00 - 3.00
- Experience (gain)/loss on plan liabilities (7.00) - (7.00)
Total amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (4.00) - (4.00)
Employer contributions/premiums paid - (7.00) (7.00)
Benefit payments (3.00) - (3.00)
Mortality charges and taxes b - -
31 March 2024 38.00 {48.00) (10.00)
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i Significant estimates

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows :

Mortality rate:
-Age 21
-Age 22
-Age 23
-Age 24
-Age 25

Particulars st sk
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.60% 7.20%
Salary growth rate 10.00% 10.00%
Withdrawal rate:
Age upto 50 years and above 20.00% 20.00%

IALM 0.000934
IALM 0.000937
IALM 0.000936
IALM 0.000933
IALM 0.000931

IALM 0.000934
IALM 0.000837
IALM 0.000936
IALM 0.000933
IALM 0.000931

iv Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of defined obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Assumption As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate
1% decrease 58.18 40.00
1% increase 52.55 36.00
Salary increment rate
1% decrease 53.12 37.00
1% increase 57.53 40.00
Withdrawal rate
1% decrease 55.70 38.00
1% increase 54.84 38.00

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in assumption while helding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is
unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the
Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability
recognised in the balance sheet.

The method and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

The following payments are expected future benefit payments:

. As at As at
particulirs March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Between 1 year 5.98 5.00
Between 2 -5 years 35.96 25.00
Between 6 - 10 years 58.78 50.00
v The major categories of plan assets are as follows:
. As at As at
Particulars
: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
“|Paoled assets with an insurance company 100% 100%
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C Risk Exposure
Provision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks, some of which are detailed hereunder.

1 Liability risks

Asset-Liability mismatch risk:
Risk which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching duration with the defined
benefit liahilities, the company is successfully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements.

Changes in discount rate risk:
Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small, but in practice can have a

significant impact on the defined benefit liabilities.

Future salary increase and inflation risk:

Since price inflation and salary growth are linked economically, they are combined for disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will often
result in higher future defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected salary increases
provided at management's discretion may lead to uncertainties in estimating this increasing risk.

2 Asset risk

All plan assets are maintained in a trust fund managed by a public sector insurer viz; LIC of India. LIC has a sovereign guarantee and
has been providing consistent and competitive returns over the years.

The Company has opted for a traditional fund wherein all assets are invested primarily in risk averse markets. The company has no
control over the management of funds but this option provides a high level of safety for the total corpus. A single account is
maintained for both the investment and claim settlement and hence 100% liquidity is ensured. Also interest rate and inflation risk are

taken care of.

D Defined contribution plans
The Company also has certain defined contribution plans:

i) Contribution to provident fund

ii) Employee State Insurance Plan

Contributions are made to provident fund for eligible employees at specified % of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions
are made to registered provident fund administered by the government.

During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of profit and loss under “Contribution to
provident and other funds”

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Provident fund 45,76 37.54
Employee State Insurance Plan 1.30 0.46
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25 Fair value measurements

a. Financial instruments by category

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,
) Amortised
Refer Note AmBTHEEH Catt Cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables 9a) 3,897.57 6,218.00
Cash and cash equivalents 9(b) 15,911.83 289.00
Dther Bank balances 9(c) 603.03 2,213.00
i i B

Security depo?tts and Earnest 33033 108.00
Money Deposits 9(d)
D i ith k turiti

E_.'pi.t!Slts with bank maturiting 1,089.08 25,00
within 12 months 9(d)
Other 9(d} 119.74 83.00
Total financial assets 21,951.58 8,936.00
Financial liahilities
Borrowings 12(a) 7,217.06 =
Trade payables 12(b} 776.17 15,315.00
Qther 12(c) 93.79 71.00
Total financial liabilities 8,087.02 15,386.00

b. There are no financial instruments that have been classified as Fair Value through Profit and loss (FVTPL} & Other|
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI].

€. The carrying amount of above mentioned financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

d. Non current borrowings has been contracted at floating rates of interest, which are reset at short intervals. Fair value of
floating interest rate borrowings approximates their carrying value subject to adjustments made for transaction cost.

26 Financial risk management

This note explains the Company's exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the Company's future financial
performance.

A Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, security deposits, as well as credit exposure to)
outstanding receivables.

(U

-

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of incurring a loss that may arise from a trade receivable failing to make required payments. Credit risk
arises mainly from outstanding receivables, cash and cash equivalents and security deposits. For banks and other financial
institutions, only high rated banks/ financial institutions are accepted. Hence cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits|
with bank are subject to low credit risk and the risk of default is negligible or nil. Therefore, no provision has been created
for expected credit loss for credit risk arising from these financial assets.

To manage the credit risk arising from outstanding receivable, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of]
customers, taking into account the financial condition, analysis of historical bad debts, ageing of accounts receivable and
forward looking information. The Company has not experienced any instances of default by its customers in the past. Based
on a review of the credit profile of its customers, past history of defaults and other factors as mentioned above, the|
Company believes that the credit risk is negligible on the trade receivables, which are unsecured and considered good.
Expected credit loss has been recognised on the credit impaired trade receivables.(For Exposure refer note no. 9(a)).
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fii} Impairment of financiol assets

The Company has following types of financial assets that are subject to expected credit loss model:
- Trade receivables

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision

Amount
Loss allowance as on 1 April 2023 -
Changes in loss allowance 119.00
Loss allowance as on 31 March 2024 119.00
Changesin loss allowance [0.18)
Loss allowance as on 31 March 2025 118.82

Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business,
the Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of]
expected cash flows.

Maturities Analysis of financial liabilities (undiscounted)
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024

) As at 31st March, 2025
Particulars :
On Demand Less than 1 year Between 1 to More than 5 Total
Borrowings 6,662.54 40.07 320.56 200.35 7,223.52
Trade payables 776.17 776.17
Other financial liabilities 93.79 93.79
Total 6,662.54 910.03 320.56 200.35 8,093.49
As at 31st March, 2024
Particulars Between 1 to More than 5
On Demand Less than 1 year Total
5 year Years
Trade payables 15,315.00 15,315.00
Other financial liabilities 71.00 71.00
Total - 15,386.00 - - 15,386.01
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C Market Risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk means the risk that the result or economic situation of the Company changes due to changes in exchange
rates. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to
the EURO and USD . Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in @ currency that is not the Company's functional currency (INR).

(a) Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure:

Derivative instrument not for trading or speculation purpose outstanding at the reporting date:

Forward contracts to purchase USS 17,98,720 (March 31, 2024: USS Nil) to hedge foreign currency purchase..
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of reporting period in Rs. (Lakhs), are as follows

As at March 31, 2025
EUR INR UsD INR
Financial Liabilities
Capital creditors 0.47 43.23 = -
Trade payables 0.14 12.83 - -

As at March 31, 2024
EUR INR usD INR

Financial Liahilities
Trade payables 7 6,961 73 6,124

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in foreign exchange rates with respect to year end payable / receivable balances is

as follows:

Impact on profit
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
| 1 by
napesss by Decrease by 5% SREEE Decrease by 5%
5% 5%
EUR (2.80) 2.80 (348.05) 348.05
usp - = (206.20) 306.20
Impact on Equity
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Increase by Increase by
sog Decrease by 5% 5 Decrease by 5%
EUR (1.39) 1.99 {246.70) 246.70
usb - - (217.03) 217.03

(ii} Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates primarily to company's
barrowing with floating interest rates. The Company do not have any significant interest rate risk on its current borrowing

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk

Particalars As at31st | Asat 31st March,
March, 2025 2024
Financial Liability
Fixed Rate Instruments 1,539.37 -
Variable Rate Instruments 5,677.69 -
7,217.06 -
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Interest Rate Sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans
and borrowings affected. With all other variables held canstant, the Company profit before tax is affected through the

impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

For the Year For the Year For the Y
Sensitivity | For the Year ended iy .
Ak — ended 31st ended 31st ended 31st
Y # ! March, 2024 March, 2025 March, 2024
Particulars
Impact On Impact On Impact On Impact On
Profit Before Tax Profit Before Equity Equity
Tax
Interest Rate (Increase) 5% (283.88) - (201.22)
Interest Rate (Decrease) 5% 283.88 201.22 -

27 Capital management

Risk Management

The Company objective to manage its capital is to ensure continuity of business while at the same time provide reasonable
returns to its various stakeholders but keep associated costs under control. In order to achieve this, requirement of capital is|

reviewed periodically with reference to operating and business plans that take into account capital expenditure and
strategic investments. Sourcing of capital is done through judicious combination of equity/internal accruals and borrowingas,

both short term and long term. Net debt to equity ratio is used to monitor capital.

particalare As at 31st March, As at 31st
2025 March, 2024
Share capital 28,756.01 11,064.00
Other equity 32,437.17 (255.00)
Equity (A) 61,193.18 10,809.00
Cash and cash equivalents 15,911.83 289.00
Total fund (B) 15,911.83 289.00
Long Term Borrowing 515.91
Short Term Borrowing 6,701.15
Total debt (C) 7,217.06 -
Net debt (D={C-B)) (8,694.77) (289.00)|
Total capital (equity + net debt) 52,498.41 10,520.00
Net debt to equity ratio (E=D/A) (0.14) (0.03)
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28 Segment Reporting

(i) Primary Segment

The Company has only one operating segment which is manufacturing of railway wheels (wheels, axles and assembly of wheelsets). On review of all the
relevant aspects including, in particular, the system of internal financial reporting to the Board of Directars which is the Chief Operating Decision Maker|
['CODM') and considering the economic characteristics of the Company's operations, the Company is of the view that it operates in a single primary
segment. Hence, no separate disclosure under Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating Segments” is considered necessary.

(ii) Secondary Segment — Geographical Segment

—— 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Within India Qutside India Total Within India | Outside India Total
Segment revenue by location of customers 32,800.27 - 32,800.27 15,712.00 250.00 15,962.00

All the assets belonging to the Company are located within India

(iii) Secondary Segment - Top Customers contributing more than 10% of the total revenue

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
More than 10% More than
of total Others Total 10% of total Others Total
revenue revenue
Segment revenue by customers 22,723.14 10,077.13 | 32,800.27 11,385.00 4,577.00 15,962.00
Segment assets by customers (Trade receivables) 3,392.14 505.43 3,897.57 4,092.00 2,126.00 6,218.00
March 31
! March 31, 2024
2025 e
Non-Current Assets*
India 39,743.15 8,673.00
Overseas = 2

* excludes financial assets, deferred tax assets, Income tax.
Figures reportad in the segments mentioned above cover all products manufactured by the Company and income from services earned by the

Company.
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29 Related Party Disclosures:

(a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

(i) Where Control exists

Sr.No Name of Related Party  [Nature of Relationship
1 Jupiter Wagons Limited Holding Company (w.e.f 20 March 2024)
2 Santon Foundation Ultimate Holding Company (upto 19 March 2024)
3 Bonatrans Group A.S. Holding Company (upto 19 March 2024}
4 JCK Group P.L.C. Intermediate Holding Company (upto 19 March 2024)

(ii) Key Managerial Personnel

Sr.No Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship
1 Ms. Madhuchhanda Chatterjee Non Executive and Independent Director (w.e.f 20 March 2024)
2 Navin Nayar Non Executive and Independent Director (w.e.f 20th Dec 2024)
3 Mr. Vikash Lohia Director (w.e.f 20 March 2024)
4 Mr. Pawan Kumar Agrawal Whole Time Directar (w.e.f 20 March 2024)
i R Key Managerial Personnel (Managing Director upto 15th March

r. Warek Jaros 2024 and Chief Executive Officer w.e. 20th March 2024)

6 Mr. Devdatta Vasant Vaidya Key Managerial Personnel (CFO)

Key management personnel compensation 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Short term employee|Mr. Pawan Kumar Agrawal 65.98
benefits {Whole Time Director) L
Short term emploveel y;. Marek Jaros (CE0) 182.08 186.00
benefits
Short term employee|Mr. Devdatta Vasant Vaidya 52,49 {6650
benefits (CFO)

As gratuity and compensated absences are computed for all the employees in aggregate based on actuarial valuation carried out for the Company as a

whole, the amounts relating to the Key Managerial Personnel cannot be individually identified.

(b) Transactions and Balances with Related Parties

Sr. No

Transactions

Balances

Nature of Transactions

For the year
ended

For the year

ended Mgt

As at

31 March 2025

31 March

31 March 2024 2025

31 March 2024

Sale of Goods

Bonatrans Group A.5.*

211.00

Jupiter Wagons Limited

19,223.97

655.00 3,387.33

4,092.00

IT Support Services

Bonatrans Group A.S.

73.00 -

Raw Material purchases

Bonatrans Group A.S.

13,120.00 -

Jupiter Wagens Limited

4,862.43

Purchase of Consumables

Jupiter Wagons Limited

2.26

Reimbursement of expenses

Bonatrans Group A.S.

13.00

Equity Shares Issued
(including Securities Premium)

Jupiter Wagons Limited

46,000.01
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3

=

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

Contingent Liabilities:
Post directions fram the Dispute Resolution Panel and final arder from the A ing officer, the Company has filed appeal with the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) for the

assessmnent year 2017-18 and 2018-19 respectively. The total upward ad|ustment of Rs.2,086 Lakhs and Rs 1,617 Lakhs has been proposed far the assessment year 2017-18 and|
2018-19 respectively to the value of international transactions for both the years and income of the Campany is to be increased by the same ameunt,which might result in tax|
liability of Rs. 544.57 lakhs and Rs. 775.61 lakhs respectively. The Company has filed MAP (Mutual agreement pracedure) Application before the Competant Authority (‘CAY) and
hence has filed an adjsurnment with the Tribunal with an ohjective to keep the matter in abeyance. Additionally, disallowance of Rs 586 Lakhs has also been proposed by the
Assessing Officer for the assessment year 2018-19. Since the outcome of the matter depends upen the subsequent events and further hearings before relevant authority for

MAP, hence the Company has censidered the amount as contingent liability.

The Company has evaluated the impact of the Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (11},
West Bengal” and the related circular (Circular Na. C-1f1(32)2013/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/224) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation|

in relation ta non-exclusion of certzin allowances from the definition of "basic wages" of the relevant employees for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund
nent, which is supported by internal legal advice, the aforesaid

under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, In the it of the r
matter is not likely to have a significant impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial staterments.

As at March | Asat March
Capital Commitments (Net of Advances) : 31 2025 312024

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account [net of advances) 68,735.49 .

Earnings per share

As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

(a) Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic earnings per share 4,441.61 {1,055.00)
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominater in caleulating basic earnings per share 21,08,74,318 11,06,37,108
211 0.95)

Basic Earnings per share

There are no dilutive potential eguity shares and therefore diluted EPS |s same as basic EPS.

Dues to micro and small enterprises
The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act'), The disclosures pursuant ta the said

MSMED Act are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
Principal amount due ta suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 917 95.00
Interest on above principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 2006 and remaining unpaid as at year end
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 8942 62.00
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 2006 beyond the appuinted day during R B
the year
Interest paid, under Sectien 16 of MSMED Act, 2006 to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Amount of interest due and payable for the pericd of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyend the appointed day, during the e 100
year] but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006 -
Interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year (not due|
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years, untll such date when the interest dues above are actually paid
to small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act. 0oL 3.00

The above infarmation regarding micro and small enterprises has been determined on the basis of information available with the Company regarding the registration status of

vendors as micro and small enterprises under MSMED Act,
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(a)

(b)

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule 111

Financial ratios

Ratio Numerator | Denominator| Current period Previous period Reasons for variance
Increase due to increase in
. Current
Current ratio Current assets liabilities 3.09 1.13 available funds and advance to
supplier
§ Average :
Net Profit afte Increase in profit due to business
Return on equity ratio \ ' Sharehgolders 0.12 (0.09) e <
Tax . growth
Equity
Average
Trade receivables
e TotalSales  [Trade 6.59 4.49 Increase in sales
turnover ratio g
Receivable
S Closing Decrease due to increase in sales
I LT
e 0 Total Sales Working 2.88 8.07 and better working capital
Capital management
Increase due to increase in
; revenue during the year and no
- Net Profit after
Net profit ratio Tax Total Sales 0.13 (0.06) major increase in fixed costs
which leads to improvement in
Net grofit ratig
Return on capital ital 1 i | siness
urn on capita BRIt Capi 0.05 (0.10) ncrease in profit due to busine:
employed Employed growth
Trade ble Average trade Increase due to increase in credit
fade sy Total purchase %8 3.02 1.84 bk
turnover ratio payables purchases during the year
1 tory turnover Average Increase in inventory due t
W_en SR Total Sales ; 4.72 3.44 oA RE
ratio inventory business growth

* Explanations to items included in numerator and denominator for computing the above ratios:
EBIT is Earnings before interest and tax

Working capital = Current assets - current liabilities

Capital employed = Total Shareholders' Funds

Other regulatory information

(i) Loans or advances to specified person
There are ne loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies

Act,2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:
(a) repayable on demand; or
(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

(i) Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)

Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(iii) Willful defaulter

Mone of the entities in the company have been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies

The company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956,

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

(vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.
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{vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(vii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet ta be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(ix) Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The Company has not used borrowings for purpose other than specified purpose of the borrowing.

(x) Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(xi) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded ar invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(xii) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or

previous year.

(xiii) Audit Trail

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} has prescribed a requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies, which use accounting software for maintaining its
books of account, shall only use such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit
log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be
disabled, The new requirement is applicable with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023,

The company was maintaining its accounting records in IF5 up to 31 January 2025 and then migrated to SAP Rise PCE with effect from 1st February
2025 The audit trail (edit log) feature for any direct changes made at the database level was not enabled for IFS. In the case of SAP Rise PCE there was
an absence of any information on the existence of audit trail (edit logs) for any direct changes made at the database level for the above period.
However, the audit trail (edit log) at the application level (entered from the frontend by users) for the accounting software were operating for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software. The audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention where such features were enabled,

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crare rupees, in aggregate, from a bank on the basis of security of current
assets of the Company. The quarterly returns / statements filed by the Company with such bank are in agreement with the books of accounts of the
Company, except for the differences as stated below.

Reconciliation of quarterly statements submitted to banks with books of accounts of the Company

Amount as per Amount as per
Reporting Periods Banks Particulars Financial quarterly returns Amount of Difference*
Statement submitted FFR
March'25 Working Capital Lenders Trade Receivables 3,897.57 4172.06 [274.49)
Trade Payables 776.17 799.58 (23.41)
Inventories 6,430.76 6,415.98 14.78
December'24 Waorking Capital Lenders Trade Receivables 3,638.33 3,824.14 {185.82)
Trade Payables 5,604.82 3,723.55 1,881.27
Inventories 7,496.49 7,496 46 0.03
September'24 Working Capital Lenders Trade Receivables 3,661.24 4.075.13 (413.89)
Trade Payables 5,678.97 1,443.64 423533
Inventories 7,226.86 6,793.55 433.31
—|lune'24 Working Capital Lenders Trade Receivables 5,014.17 5,519.90 (505.73)
! ; 5 Trade Payables 7,703.57 820.96 6,822.61
m@}?@s\ 8,018.66 8,010.40 8.26
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Jupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited

(Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)

CIN : U28113MH2013FTC240285

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Rupees Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

No working capital loan was sanctioned in the previous year 2023-24 and thus no quaterly statement has been filed by the company to the bank.
*The Quarterly statements submitted to banks were preparad and filed before the completion of all financial statement closure activities including
accounting standard related adjustments / reclassifications & regrouping as applicable, which led to these differences between the final books of
accounts and the quarterly statements submitted to banks based on provisional books of accounts.
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Corporate 5ocial Responsibility (CSR)
It is to be noted that the Company does not meet the criteria prescribed under section 135(1) of Companies Act 2013, and CSR expenditure is not

mandatery for the Company.

36 Government of India’s Cade for Social Security 2020 (the 'Code’) received assent from the President in September 2020 and the draft rules have been
released by the Ministry of Labour and Employment on November 13, 2020. However, the date from when the Code will become applicable and the
Rules, have not yet been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code and account for the same once the effective date and the rules are

notified.
In terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Singhi & Co lupiter Tatravagonka Railwheel Factory Private Limited

[Formerly known as Bonatrans India Private Limited)
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